
The Royal high School organ. 
 
By Alan Buchan (leaving year 1971) 
 
The RHS organ was originally built for St. Paul's Free Church in St. Leonard's Street, Newington by the prolific 
national firm of Eustace Ingram of London and Hereford. It was inaugurated at St. Paul's on 2nd October 1898. By 
this time Eustace Ingram's son, Arthur, had set up a branch in Edinburgh which soon became the largest organ 
building firm in Scotland. The actual installation was almost certainly carried out by local Edinburgh staff. Following 
the closure in 1942 of St. Paul's Church, by then part of the established Church of Scotland, the organ was moved to 
the school in Regent Road thanks to the efforts of the Rector, Albert Ball and Director of Music, Norman Mellalieu. 
This work was completed in 1948 by Arthur Ingram's Edinburgh branch of the firm. However, in 1956 the Ingram firm 
folded and was taken over by Rushworth & Dreaper of Liverpool. In the summer of 1967, the organ was dismantled 
by Rushworth & Dreaper. In the school's final year at Regent Road, morning assemblies and concerts were 
accompanied on the grand piano by Director of Music, William Bowie. By the time the school moved to Barnton in 
September 1968, the organ had been reconstructed in the new building with two extra ranks ("Mixture" stops) 
added to give more sparkle to the overall sound. The extra stops cost about £600. The organ was tuned and 
maintained by Rushworth & Dreaper until the demise of that firm in 2002, at which time their Scottish branch 
established itself as Forth Pipe Organs. Forth Pipe Organs continue to visit from time to time. 
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St. Paul's Free Church in St. Leonard's Street, 

Newington – organ in use between 1898 and 1942 
The east organ loft in the hall at Regent Road, installed 

with the west loft and the console in 1948 
  

 
 

The organ console Bill Bowie and his boys rehearse circa 1963 
 



Schola Regia announcements about the school organ – Schola Regia Summer 1947 pp 99-101 
 

 

 

 
 

 
The 1948 Summer Schola Regia article thanking the Rector’s wife (Mrs Ball) for her part in securing the funds to 
acquire and install the organ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The 2022 School Organ project 
 

In September 2022, it was decided to investigate the state of the organ, with the objective of recording a 
short concert for transmission to Former Pupils via the Annual email newsletter. 
Alan Buchan, the author of the first part of this article, very kindly travelled from the Moray coast to visit 
the school, and make an assessment of the organ’s condition.     He quickly confirmed issues with the organ 
blower, requiring electricians, and tuning requirements which could be delivered by old acquaintances 
‘Forth Pipe Organs’.   The Rector was approached with a request to pursue some funding from the RHS 
Club, and the fact that the organ formed part of the WW2 memorial held considerable sway. 
Electrical and organ pipe maintenance started in November, and after agreement from Alan Buchan, and 
another Former Pupil organist Alan Ireland, a concert was videoed on Friday 4th November, with no fewer 
than four cameras being used to show all aspects of the performance.    The concert was included in the 
newsletter, and our statistics show that over 100 viewings took place. 
 
The concert can be viewed here. 
 

  
2022 Oct 17 - organ electricians at work on 
the organ blower motor, trying to reduce 

the vibrations 

2022 Oct 19 - Jim Smail of Forth Pipe Organs 
in the organ loft 

 
 

2022 Oct 19 - Broken swell reeds 2022 Oct 28 RHS Organ team.   Jim Smail, 
David Page, Alan Ireland (seated), Alan 

Buchan and David Stewart 

 
 

2022 Nov 4 - Ian 'Quentin Tarantino' Cowie 
keeping an eye on sound and vision quality 

2022 Nov 4 - a video clip showing Alan 
Buchan and Alan Ireland performing 

 

https://vimeo.com/781142344

